These pages are taken from
History of Chautauqua County New York and its People,

by John P. Downs, Boston, 1921.

These pages show that John Cleland, Jr. arrived in Charlotte, Chautauqua County, New York in
1810 and that John Cleland, Sr. and most of the rest of his family arrived shortly thereafter (Page
125). The following pages (538-540) give an extensive biography for Susan Cleland Isbell, to
give a thorough background for the Cleland Family of Charlotte, NY and its lineage back to the
immigrant ancestor James Cleland who came to America from Edinburgh, Scotland in 1750.
Biographies of other members of the Cleland Family in Chautauqua County, NY then follow.

William V. Gehrlein
February, 2015
Lewes, DE
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OPENING GF THE TWENTIETH CENTURY

labored long heyond man’s allotted years and
carried with him to the grave the love and
respect of every Chautauquan who knew him
or of his work. i

The population of Chautaugua county, its
towns, villages and cities, has just been an-
nounced by the Federal Census Burean, Sep-
tember 1, 1020, The figures for the censuz of
oo, a5 compared with those of 1910 and 1900
fallow :
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CHAPTER XVI.
Towne: Arkwright—Busti—Carroll—Charlotte —Chautanqua—Cherry Creek—Clymer.

Arkwright—The town of Arkwright, in the
northern part of the county, sureounded north,
vast, soitth and west by Sheridan. Villenova,
Charlotte and Pomfret, was formed from Pom-
fret and Villenova, April 13, 1820, The high-
est points in the town range from cleven hun-
dred to twelve hundred feet above Luke Trie,
Sheridan zeparates Arkwright from Lake Erie
and Villenova from Cattarangus county. While
the original forests have all been felled and
given way to the fields, and the soil iz well
adapted to the raising of crops, aprcnltore i=
nat the leading industry of the town, the hilly

nature of the town making £ more profitable
for grazing. The chict source of wealth 1s the
dairy product, which compares Fvorably with
the other towns of Chautauqua county.
Arkwright has the distinction of hal.ring abe-
solutely no aliens among its inhabitants, the
entire population in mrs—=35—heing all citi-
zens, aecording to the New York State cenisas,
There are many points of comparison in
which the town is surpaszed by itz neighbors,
yet there is no scencry in the county so pic-
turesgue and heautiful as that at and near Ark-
wright Falls. There banks of shale rise pre-



124

intn the hands of [ Lo Rawson, perchased later by
Jutin Hiller and larned inoa8z2. At the fcad of Frew
e, Jubn Wlvers put i a mdll thag Samiel Cowen
parchased Iater. -

All these miills were'on Frew B, a strenm nob ex-
ceeding five miles an fength, aml all were opermied
tleree v doir months in the vear. . Inoesrly times, water
wis held Lack Ty the densily of forest; sootlat even in
A aley time, afer o thamler shower, Qeite 3 firdlee of
baisiieess eaild b neconpliched,  Neme ol these mills
Tart  fawed onehdoilred  thomsamt feet of Tumber 2
year—more gawel three nr four tBmes that, . Wil two
l.':-il.'-.'plirllt:-,- all theer mills were I:'Il-liuing il 1 [E
Steam saperseded the water power on this stream, and
ane anill 15 aperation at the present time Craaely that
of Lewis Brothers o et 5

in the pputhwest portion of the fown were Bveomiils
cnt' b shaome steenm Bor 6odizsnes notexcesling a mils,
the frrt oi which w2s Wil i 853 The mills were
boilt by Dapiel Whecler, Luther Torlmsh, Toseph
Hook, Benpamin Price.  The Wheeler: mill passed into
the hands of . H, Fentme znd son, FHaale mill sald to
J. Beokaow. aml at o later date; Me, Beokaw baili fae-
ther wp the stremn, George AWilksie purclisted  thie
Price -mill, finteodueed srteam, amd speransd 85 late as
1888 with an annnal predoet of osooe (eet,. Ta 1383
My Wilizie ot foorteen thowsand pme shingles from
a singhe tree, On ot 32, on Case Run, the three Fope
hroihers, fedinh, Gersham, and Chester, who were
known aa the ofd company, bailt and operated o meell;
they niterwnrnds sabd to A= Comstock: Thess brothers
farer Laahl two mills on ot 14 The Covey mill - was
boaglt by GOW. Fenton, Jroon lot 23, i 38zq0  Tamcs
Cowen, hetween 1838 and 1dgo bkt a anll on the same
lot, “Mr Comatock dold Wis mitl o T Farrington and
bufle another on lot 2, and which. was opesated ater
by Helday & Ames Another mill owned By Plingy
Cmas was the Fowest om Case Buong and passed inioihe
hands of Wiz somn. J. Soith Cass: A

Tr 1258 G. W, Fenton, Je. haile s mill just below the
one lwe parchased in 1834, and in 1356 bl =ncther,
sging e saiee power aml fume: for hoth. These mmiils
hod ynaswal rapl:u:il}', the wstal anmual geodect |H!il15
o ooir (e2t of lomber. 1o (8300 the product reache
ooy et Both theése mills were operated for
twentw years, when the lower mill was arranged for
slidmgle sawing,  The othor mill fzseill (ipoe) i opers-
tion by the Fentim brothers, who are using the origmnil
water power with n terbine wheel. The Harriegten
mill 15 atse o eperation with the original water power,
Amasa Burt parchazed one of the Pope milks on lod 1

In easly times shingles were Tived amd shaved from
the best pine timber, bt as first-clags pine dimindshed,
shingle mnchines - were “introduced and timber.  that
woahd not adinit splitting and shoving was sawsd dako
ghingles, Twenty-five thouzand plise 5-]'I:II1|ifl"} cut from
4 gingle. trec was not an uncomamon pEoEEL in thise
times. The prodict of these several mills was hauled
1o the mearest point on the banks of the Conewanga,
nanilly alusiigy v winter ceason, as wigons Were un-
known in the earhier daye  The bomeds were rofied
ateil loadead with shingles ready 4o Aear ong on the firse
spring frechet. Vast Meets of lumber were: gent vearly
diwn the Conewangs to the Allegleny river to Pitls-
Inirgh and [ariher sowth, For several yeass the best
pine was worth ouly $250 per thousand feet. This was
traded for supphes, as Haour, 'p-m"k.. r1.l.‘:!1-,. coffes, sugar,
cotton elotly, ete. floar af gimes being twenty dollars
and pork forty dollars a barrel A camoe was tiken
cap il alr, amd inte this were loaded the supplies; then
pushed back at the el of o seiting pole againet o
strong current to the starting [oint.

CHATTAUDTA COUNTY AR ITS PEOPLE

 When the first bridge was bolll seross the Alldgheny
river ab Prtshureh, ihe contractor cune fo tie Cones
wanggo camity,  He fowml the timber wantes] pear ihe
Penmsyliania lime- [Tpomn inmguivieg the price, e owtet
tobil lism he - eoubl lavesablhe winted for oothing as
the graaind Tt winich the timber stood  was worth
miwe fog agricubmral purposes than the timber ataelf.
Thiusumits of pie logs cist from the imber from this
valley mensured” more than five feet at the simmp.and
mmle from theee to five thonsand feet of lember, while
there were occasional logs dthar mensured seven Teck
neroas,  voke of these majestic 5::|:!i|||;'!5 BOW PCmi,
I ifrd AL M. Waodeork it Irom ot 4% two trces
measitring ioor and a half fest ot the stump that netiedd
B Fi85. VWhile these did not compare with ooy of
their prelecessnres insize, ther commercml value wns
fmtsn.lrf:u'.ui_-.' greater
The Tast teact of Jaml of any consaderalide size-with
wth of primeval pine. opon it was the Preadecgost
easte i KEmione, formedly a panrt of Carcoll. 1t was
Eup:]l:.s.ed m 128 by Williim Townsend and Daniel
rhawold, whooceected 7 mill and manufactured it inko
lEimber.  The estale comipristd moee thain eight hion-
dred scres, of wlhicl gix mdred were frmhersl Many
of them were mapiEifcon toes it lor the mast of 3

stntely ship. There were several millions of lomber
et from this tract,

Supervisors—Tames Hall, 1826-3 d&ﬁ- James
Parker, i#34-37-30-57; Eshbar K . £
Phinsas Spencer, 18405 Jedial E. Budiong,
1841 ; Gordon Swift, 1832-34 ; John Frew, 1845
Reuben E, Fenton, 18s6-52: Edwin Eaton,
tBs3-537 William H. H, Fenton, 18s54-65-71
Charles L. Norton, 1#55-58-64: Lucius M.
Robertson, 1872 William Sheldon, 1874 Al-
bert Fox, 1875: Temple A, Parker, 1876-57;
Edward L. Eall, 188; Lucius M. Raobertzon,
rBrg ;. George (. Davis, t880; Silas W, Parker,
1851-57: Mareus T. Howard, 1885-00; John
Venman, THyT-03-08-1003; Charles Diodge,
rRaq-07 7 Dana |, Hunt, 1004-07; Herherp B
Bennete, 1008-19; Love T. Durrand, 1620,

The full value of Busti real estate in 19z
wie §r022.7%9; equalized, $So2.446.

Charlotte—For  the centennial history of
Chatitamiqus county published in 1g0q, Obed
Iidson, Chamtaugua's foremost historian, now
pasgsed to eternal rest, prepared a history of
Charlotte, his own “home town,” the scene of
the activities of his father, Judee John M. Ed-
aom, and of his father's step-Tather, Major Sam-
uel Sinclear,. That history iz herein conzider-
ably ‘drawn opon, 35 is 3 ecompanion article
from the pen of Mrs, Robert C, Seaver, entitled
“The Founder of Sinclasrville and Charlotte
Center—iphe-18ay."

The first settlement of the town of Charlatte
was made in the northwestern part, known as
the Pickett neighborhood.  John Pickett. April
1, 1800, then unmarried, settled on lot 62, and
huilt on the Pickett brook a log house, the first
in the town. e was born in Spencertown,
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TOWNS

Columbia county, Cium: 20, 1789, He after
wards removed to Chenango county, and Feb-
miary 23, 1800, came fo Chawtamqua county.
His brother, Daniel Pickett, and hiz family
‘settled upon lot 63, built & eabin and moved
into it im the fafl. His brother-in-law, Arva O
Austin and wile, the same vear moved into a
log homse that he built upon lot 63, Abel Prior
and Taylor Gregg took up land in the south
part of lat 6z, hut did not remain during the
winter. January 25, 1810, was horn Phoebe,
nghter of Arva O Austin, the first white

TBIT &t
‘his death.

¢ was the father of Madizon and
Ransom: Burnell, eminent lawyers, hoth born

in Charlotte. Among other sertlers who leit
descendants here were Freeman Ellis, Edward
Dalrymple, Ebakim Barnum. Jacob Hall, James
Cross, David Ames and Caleh Clark,  Orton,
“gon of Caleb, was su te, 1848-52 inclusive.
John B. Cardot, from Frince, settled in this
art of the town, He was followed by other
miliex from that country. 7
Charlotte Center was first settled by Roh-
ert W. Seaver, a soldier of the Revolution. His
zon, Randolph W, and grandson, Corydon, be-
came superyisars, In the spring of 18og, Mr,
cSeaver and Barna Edson selected ninety acres
of Iot 37 The same spring William Devine
settled npon the west part of lot ag, wheee he
built the first building at the Center.  Oliver
Gilmour, Daniel Jackson and Aaron Seaver
were early ecttlers.  Stephen Lyman, brother-
in-law of Major Sinclear, settled near the Cen-
tér; In 1811 Barney Cole was buried at the
Center; he was thﬁn:t male person who died
in the town. At an early day a shop was built
on Mill creek by Edward Landas, for swool
carding and cloth dressing, which was later
eged as a pail and wood mill factory, and tum-
ing shop.  About 1817 the first saw mill was
burilt: there.. Tm 1860 a ateam saw mill was
erected by Addison Lake and Edwin Tuttle,
Aboiit 1831 Joseph Landas built and opened

125

the first store at the Center, although others
had for brief peeicds seld limited amounts of
merchandise. In (821 Mathan Lake and his
brother Calvin, from New England, settled
east of the Center. Their brothers, Daniel B,
aml Luther Lake, in 1826 settled in what be-
came the "Lake Seutlement.”” Freeman Lake
came [ater. The Lake brothers were men of
character and intelligence, and their descemnd-
ants hiave been leading and influential citizens.
Nathan Lake was the first supervisor, elected
in 18300 Allen A, Stephens, son-in-law of Na-
than Lake; Edwin F. Lake, son, and Horace
E. Kimbel, san-in-law of Bapiel B. Lake and
Henry C, Lake, son of Calvin, have all been
suptrr.'isnrs. l-ienry o Lake during two terms
was a member of Assembly from Chautaugua
county, and his son, Clarence H. Lake, sheriff.
Hon, Joht Weadward, hiz nephew, a grand-
son of Calvin Lake, was born-at Charlotte Cen-
ter; and Decame 2 Justice of the Supreme
Court.  Arthur C. Wade; the distinguished
lawyer, and Charles L. Webster, the distin-
guished publisher {made a “Kwmight of the
Order of Pius V117 by the Pope) were both
born-at Charlotte Center. Thomas T, Allen,
while residing at Charlotte Center, was elected
ta the Aszsembly in 1837. Hugh Harpee, of
County Donegal, Ireland, in 1835 settled about
a mile sonth of that place; he'died at the age
of b, leaving many descendants. His brother
Willizm came from Ireland a few years later
and settled in the town. where he has numer-
ous descendants; The population of Charlotte
Center in 1875 was 127,

Sinelairville. {originally Sinclearville)l was
next settled in June, rdog.  john Pickett, of
the Pickett settiement, piloted a party of pia-
neers: down Mill ereek to Cassadaga; here he
felled a tree to'enable the pirly to cfoss the
stream. . After poiming out. the: wiay that led
i the Smitey settlement in Ellery, he returned
to his home, Mo white man of whom we have
any gccount had vizited the place now Sin-
elairville prior to Mr. Pickett, except the sur-
weyors of the Holland Company,  Sinclaicyille
derives its name from Major Szmuel Sinclear,
o soldier of the Revolution, and helonged toa
¢elebrated family of New Hampshire. Among
other distinguished refatives le had 45 2 near
kinsiman Joseph Cilley, United States 5?4:',1‘!..‘1.!1]!'
from Mew Hampshire. He was also a kinsman
of Governor' B, F. Buotler, of Mazsachusetts,
and anele of John Go Sinelear, a distingnizhed
orator and lestenant-governot of New Hamp-
shire, Having purchased lot 41, embracing
the lamd where the willige is situated, in No-
vember, 13&1}, he commenced settlement b.'l-'
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538 CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY

Marion H. Fisher was born Dec. 14, 1881, at James-
town, N. Y. He attended the public schools of that
city and graduated from the high school in 1go1. He
then entered the Sheffield Scientific School of Yale Uni-
versity, graduating from there in 1go4. He began his
legal studies in his father's office, attended Albany Law
School during the year 1004-05, and from the fall of
1005 until the fall of 1008 acted as secretary to his
father in the office of the Supreme Court reporter at
Albany, assisting in the editing and publishing of the
opinions of the Appellate Divisions of the Supreme
Court. While at Albany, Mr. Fisher completed his
legal studies and was admitted to the bar of the State
of New York in March, 1908. In high school Mr.
Fisher was prominent in athletics, playing left end on
the champion Jamestown High School football elevens
in 18)7 and 1898, and quarterback in 1goo. He was
also a member of the first high school basketball team,
and rowed on two victorious Chadakoin Boat Club
crews (1899 and 1904) in the annual race with the Chau-
tauqua crews for the Miller Trophy. During summer
vacations, Mr. Fisher worked for four seasons for the
Chautauqua Steamboat Company, the last year (1003)
as captain of the excursion steamer “City of Chicago.”
At Yale, Mr. Fisher was elected a member of the Chi
Phi {raternity, and at the Albany Law School of the
Phi Delta Phi, legal fraternity., He is a member of
Jamestown Lodge, No. 263, Benevolent and Protective
Order of Elks, of the Chadakoin Boat Club, the Moon
Brook Golf Club, and other social organizations.

Mr. Fisher was united in marriage at the Hotel
Gotham, June 28, 1013, with Ethel Breon Jones, daugh-
ter of Louis Breon and Marietta (Carolin) Jones, of that
city. They are the parents of one child, Robert, born
March 11, 1015,

DANIEL E. FISHER, son of Jerome Bonaparte
and Julia E. (Hatch) Fisher (q. v.), was born in
Jamestown, March 1, 1884, He attended the Jamestown
public schools, and while there was a member of the
High School Lyceum, representing the school on debat-
ing teams and interscholastic speaking contests. He
played on three high school football teams, and was
captain of the team in 1goz. After leaving high school,
he attended the Jamestown Business College, and then
for several years worked in the oil fields of Ohio and
Olklahoma. In 1910, he received a serious injury in the
hip, returned to Jamestown, and following a protracted
illness, died Sept. 13, 1017, at the Jones Hospital, and
was buried in Lakeview Cemetery in Jamestown, N. Y.

Daniel E. Fisher, to a marked degree, inherited his
father's personal magnetism, generosity and ability to
mix with men and make friends, and his untimely death
was sincerely mourned.

CAPT. REUBEN FENTON FISHER is one of
Jamestown's younger business men who have given a
good account of themselves both as business men and
as citizens, He won his captain’s commission during
the World War, but since his return from the army has
been recommissioned as captain in the United States
Officers’ Reserve Corps, which gives him a living
claim to the rank. Captain Fisher is a son of Judge

Jerome Bonaparte Fisher, whose passing in 1919 caused
a genuine wave of sorrow to sweep over Chautauqua
county, for Judge Fisher was one of the hest known
men  of Chautauqua county and past grand exalted
ruler of the Benevolent and Protective Order of Elks
of the United States. A deep admirer of Governor
Reuben E. Fenton, and in honor of his friend, he
named his youngest son Heuben Fenton Fisher.

Reuben Fenton Fisher was born in Jamestown, N. Y.,
Nov. 10, 1838, He attended Jamestown public schools
and Holbrooks Military Academy, finishing his courses
at the latter school in 1008, He was a member of the
football teams and rowed on the Chadakoin Boat Club
crews against Chautaugua crews in 1005-06-07. He
entered Sheffield Scientific School, Yale University,
whence he was graduated in the mechanical engineering
department, class of 1911, In that year he entered
the employ of the Art Metal Construction Company
of Jamestown, resigning in 1016 to become associated
with the Jamestown Shale Paving Brick Company.
After a year with that company war broke out between
the United States and Germany ; Mr. Fisher applied for
the first officers’ training camp and was commissioned
first: lieutenant of the ordnance department in May,
1017, reporting for active duty in October, 1917, and in
June, 1918, was commissioned captain in the United
States Army. He was honorably discharged and mus-
tered out of the United States service, March 10, 1010,
He was recommissioned captain of the Officers’ Re-
serve Corps, United States Army, May 14, 1910, and
now holds that commission (May, 1920).

After his return from service in March, 1019, Captain
Fisher became general manager of the Monarch Re-
fillable Fuse Company, of Jamestown, N. Y. He is a
Republican in politics, and in 1016 and 1917 was a mem-
ber of both the city and county Republican committees.
He is a Master Mason of Mt. Moriah Lodge, a com-
panion of Western Sun Chapter, and a sir knight of
Jamestown Commandery, Knights Templar. He is a
member of Jamestown Lodge, Benevolent and Protective
Order of Elks, Alpha Zeta and Chi Phi fraternities;
Yale Engineering Society, Chadakoin Beat Club, Moon
Brook Country Club, and a member of St. Luke's
Protestant Episcopal Church.

Mr, Fisher married, in Germantown, Pa., May 21,
1010, Helen B. Moore, daughter of Henry R. and
Blanche W. (Bartram) Moore. To Mr. and Mrs.
Fisher has been born one child, Sarah Moore, July 1s,
1020.

MRS. SUSAN M. (CLELAND) ISBELL—The
first Cleland in the town of Charlotte, Chautauqua
county, N. Y., to appear upon the records as a land
owner was John Cleland, Jr., who, in March, 1813,
bought lot 53, township 4, range 11, according to the
survey of the Holland Company. This does not in-
dicate the true date of the Cleland settlement in the
town, however, as he had arrived there in March, 1810,
and two of the Cleland brothers, Nathan and Oliver,
came in the spring of 1811. Later, the entire family of
John and Thankful (Eaton) Cleland came from Otsego
county, in the southern central part of New York State,
and settled on now section 12, town of Charlotte. This
John Cleland, Jr., was a son of John and Thankful

1




.

BIOGRAPHICAL 539

(Eaton) Cleland, and a grandson of James Cleland,
the American ancestor, who was born in Edinburgh,
Scotland, and came to New England in 1750, John
Cleland, Jr., was the father of Byron Cleland, and the
grandfather of Susan M. Cleland, now Mrs. Henry
Isbell, who with her husband resides on their farm
in Charlotte, the town to which more than a century
ago her ancestors came to join with the forces of civ-
ilization in wresting from the forest farms, homes, and
communities. Clelands from the first bore well their
part in this great work, and those representing the
pioneers of a century ago bear equally well their part in
twentieth century life.

(I) James (2) Cleland, the American ancestor, born
in Edinburgh, Scotland, came to New England in 1750.
He was the son of James (1) Cleland, a man of wealth
and education in Edinburgh, and undoubtedly his son
was given educational advantages in accordance with his
father's position in the city. James (1) Cleland married
a Miss Bruce, and at the time of the birth of their son
James (2) they were residents of Edinburgh. After
the coming of James (2) Cleland to this country in 1730,
he located in Boston, Mass., and in that State passed
the remainder of his life. He married Thankful Wilder,
and they were the perents of seven children: Samuel,
Thomas, James, a soldier of the Revolution; John, of
further mention; Helen, Molly, and Hannah.

(I1) John Cleland, son of James (2) and Thankful
(Wilder) Cleland, was born in Massachusetts, Feb, 16,
1758, and lived in Plainfield, in that State; he was a
soldier of the Revolution, serving two years, 1778-
1780, in the company commanded by Captain Thomas,
of Colonel Milk’s regiment. During his service he was
orderly to General Putnam and saw considerable active
service. He married, in 1780, and in 1807, with his
wife and family of eight children, moved to New York
State, locating first in Otsego county. In the spring of
1811 two of his sons, Nathan and Oliver, made the long
journey to Chautauqua county, where their brother
John had preceded them in March, 1810, and being
pleased with lands and conditions, made a favorable re-
port, and in the fall of the same vear John Cleland and
his family found his sons in what is now the town of
Charlotte, The long journey of 300 miles was made
in wagons, cighteen days being consumed ere the desti-
nation was reached. The homestead farm which they
selected was a tract of 300 acres on lot 54, section 12,
east of present Charlotte Center, where, with the aid of
stalwart sons, a clearing was soon made and eventually
the entire tract was brought under cultivation. The
first settlement was made in Charlotte in 1800, and in
March of the next year John Cleland, Jr., was on the
ground, the forerunner of his family who came the
next year—thus the claim, to be pioneers of the town,
is fully substantiated.

John Cleland married, in East Windsor, Conn., April
27, 178, Thankful Eaton, of an old Connecticut family,
born April 12, 1757, died at the homestead in Charlotte,
Chautauqua county, N. Y., Jan. 10, 1844, aged eighty-
seven years. John Cleland died Feb. 16, 1827, aged
sixty-nine years, and both were buried in the Pickett
Cemetery, a plot of ground given to the neighborhood
by John Pickett, off the original Pickett farm. Children
of John and Thankful (Eaton) Cleland: Beriah, barn

Nov. 15, 1781; Edna, born June 28, 1782; Samuel, born
Sept. 1, 1784, died in infancy; James, horn Sept. 26,
1780, died in infancy; Samuel (2), born May 14, 1788;
Thankful, born April 22, 1790; John and James (2)
(twins}, born Feb. 19, 1702: Oliver, born Oct. 25,
1793; Nathan, born March 5, 1705; Martin, born April
10, 1707.

(111} John (2) Cleland, son of John (1) and Thank-
ful (Eaton) Cleland, was born in Plainfield, Mass.,
Feb. 19, 1702, died in Charlotte, Chautauqua county,
N. Y., and was buried in Pickett Cemetery, He was
brought to New York State by his parents in 1807, re-
maining with them in their sojourn in Herkimer and
Otsego counties, until the spring of 1810, when he made
the long journey through the scarcely settled country to
Chautauqua county, finally settling in what is now
Charlotte. He took up a traet of 120 acres on lot 34,
and in the records is given as a purchaser of lot 53,
township 4, range 11, of the Holland Land Company's
survey, in 1813; when the remainder of the family came
in 1811, they too, settled in Charlotte, making a very
important addition to the male population of the town,
John (2) Cleland continued active in farm life until
incapacitated by the weight of the years® which he
carried, The Cleland brothers, Samuel, John, Oliver,
and Nathan, were men of great strength and endur-
ance and also were men of strong character and upright
life. All lived to be very old men, and at the time of
publishing Young's “History of Chautaugqua County,”
1855, their ages were thus given: Samuel, eighty-seven;
John, eighty-three; Oliver, eighty-one; Nathan, the
voungest of the four, lived fo be ninety-two. The line
of Nathan Cleland is traced in this work in reviews of
the lives of Dr. Charles S. Cleland, and of his brother,
Owen M. Cleland.

John (2) Cleland married, April 12, 1812, Hannah
Pickett, born Feb. 13, 1795, died Feb. o, 1873, and was
buried in Pickett Cemetery. She was of the Pickett
family of Charlotte, the first settler in the town being
John Pickett, who built the first log house in the town,
and with his brother, Daniel Pickett, and Arva 0.
Austin, were the only families who passed the winter
of 1800-10 in the town. John Pickett is credited with
being third on the list of purchasers of land from the
Holland Land Company, his purchase being made in
1800, township 4, range 11, lot 62. He was unm.-lrri.ed
at the time, but his brother Daniel came with his family
in the fall of 1800, and settled upon lot 63. He was
a brother-in-law of Arva Taylor, who also built a log
cabin on lot 63, these early settlers all being related,
John Cleland soon becoming one of the family, his
wife, Hannah, a daughter of Daniel Pickett. The
Picketts were from Columbia county, N. Y., later resi-
dents of Chenango, whence they came to Chautanqua.
John and Hannah (Pickett) Cleland were the parents
of: Darius, born July 28, 1813; Augustus, born May 22,
1816: Emily, born Aug. o, 1813; Marilla, born Nov. 28,
1220; John Wilder, born April 16, 1823; Hannah, born
May 18 1825 Byron, of further mention,

(IV) Byron Cleland, youngest son of John (2) and
Hannah (Pickett) Cleland, was born at the homestead
in the town of Charlotte, Chautauqua county, N. Y,
Oct. 27, 1830, died at his home in lhle village of Cassa-
daga, in the town of Stockton, April 0, 1916, an octo-
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genarian. He attended the district schools near his
home in Charlotte, also the old Fredonia Academy. He
was very well educated for those years. He followed
school teaching for a number of years, beginning at the
age of sixteen; he taught several years in the South
before the Civil War. After his marriage he returned
to the old homestead to take care of his parents, which
he did until their death, remaining on the farm as long
as he could work a farm, then moved to Cassadaga, on
a small farm, and there spent the remaining years of
his long and useful life. He was a farmer all his life.
He died at the age of eighty-six, and was buried in
Cassadaga Cemetery, beside his first wife and two sons.

Byron Cleland married (first) Sept. 22, 1856, Lu-
cinda E. Hill, of Cherry Creek, Chautauqua county, N.
Y., who died Aug. 22, 1804, and is buried in Cassadaga
Cemetery. They were the parents of: 1. Jennie V.,
born Feb. 14, 1858, died Aug. 14, 1800; she married,
Oct. 31, 18%, Edgar Collor, of Lowell, Mich. 2-3-4.
John, James, and Jason (triplets), born June 26, 1861,
the last-named dying in infancy; John and James grew
to manhood and both died Jan. 28, 1883, 5. Susan M.,
of further mention. Byren Cleland married (second)
Mrs. Lucy Gree.

(V) Susan M. Cleland, youngest daughter of Byron
Cleland and his first wife, Lucinda E. (Hill) Cleland,
was born at the home of her parents in Charlotte, Chau-
tauqua county, N. Y., June 23, 1865. She was educated
in the public schools and followed teaching for a num-
ber of vears before her marriage, Dec. 1, 1836, to Erie P.
Pickett, a farmer of Charlotte, who died Jan. 24, 1906,
leaving two children: Fern, wife of Walter Lamkin,
of Fredonia, N. Y.; Ralph Alanson, a farmer of the
town of Stockton; he married Myrtle Bussing. Mrs.
Susan M. (Cleland) Pickett married (second) Henry
Isbell, born Oct. 22, 1860, in Pittsburgh, Pa., a son of
Richard and Ansty (McCarthy) Isbell, his father born
in England, died in Cattaraugus county, N. Y. He re-
ceived his early education in the public schools of
Pittsburgh, and after leaving school entered the employ
of the Buffalo Southwestern Railroad, continuing until
1007, becoming a foreman of construction. In 1007,
Mr. Isbell gave up his work with the railroad and came
to Charlotte, where he purchased a farm of forty
acres, which he cultivates and causes to produce abun-
dantly. Mr. Isbell married (first) Anna Densen, who
died at Cherry Creek, N. Y., leaving two children:
Jennie, who married Bey Fox, a farmer; and Nellie,
who married Walter B. Hall.

Mrs. Isbhell is a member of the Baptist church and
active in church work. Mr. Isbell is a Demacrat in
politics, a member of the Independent Order of Odd
Fellows, and of the Knights of the Maccabees.

CHARLES MORRIS WAITE—Since the organiz-
ation of the Conewango Valley National Bank, Jan. 1,
1907, at Conewanga Valley village, Mr. Waite has been
its assistant cashier and cashier successively. Cone-
wango Valley village lies on both sides of the line
between Chautauqua and Cattaraugus counties, the
bank building being on the Cattaraugus side, Mr.
Waite's home on the Chautauqua side. Mr. Waite is of
New England ancestry, his father, Galusha Miner
Waite, being of Vermont birth and parentage. Galusha
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M. Waite, a lumberman and farmer, settled in the town
of Poland, Chautauqua county, N. Y. He married Jane
Bunce, who was born in Cattaraugus county, N. Y.

Charles M. Waite, son of Galusha M. and Jane
(Bunce) Waite, was born in the town of Poland, Chau-
tauqua county, N. Y., March 5, 1855. He was educated
in public schools, and the Chamberlain Institute at
Randolph, N. Y., and began his business career imme-
diately after gradvation. He taught school for one
term, then accepted a position as clerk in the store of
Aldrich & Pratt, at Kennedy. About three years later
Mr. Pratt withdrew and Mr, Waite and Orlando Sweet-
land entered the firm with Mr. Aldrich, under the firm
name of Aldrich, Sweetland & Waite. After a short
time spent with this firm, Mr. Waite went into business
for himself at Watts Flats, and later took a position
as a salesman with B. F. Lounsbherry. After a short
period in the employ of Mr. Lounsberry, Mr. Waite
entered the office of the Breed Furniture Company, of
Jamestown, which position he left to enter the employ
of the Chautauqua County National Bank as teller,
where he remained for eight years. He then became
associated with C. F. Munson, of Jamestown, a manu-
facturer of wooden mantles, then, in partnership with
H. A. Doring and M. E. Town, began the manufacture
of mattresses. Two years later he returned to the
bank, which in the meantime had become a trust com-
pany, and later reorganized and known as the National
Chautauqua County Bank, its present name. Here he
remained for eight years, when, his health failing, he
assumed charge of the farm of Charles M. Dow, in
Randolph., About eighteen months later, in January,
1907, Mr. Waite accepted a position as assistant cashier
with the Conewango Valley National Bank, which was
then being reorganized. Upon the death of Horace
Wells, cashier, Mr. Waite succeeded to that position,
which position he now holds.

Mr, Waite married, Oct. 8, 1876, in Kennedy, Chautau-
qua county, N. Y., Carrie Aldrich, daughter of George
A. and Huldah S. (Eaton) Aldrich. Mrs. Waite died
in January, 1007, leaving two sons: George Burton,
born in 1878, who married Elizabeth Bentley, and they
reside in Jamestown, and have one child, a daughter,
Carrie: and James Aldrich, born in 183, who married
Josephine Colenso, and they reside in Jamestown, and
are the parents of two children, Alice and Robert.

GLENN D. CLARK—Among the successful and re-
spected citizens of Ellicott township, Jamestown,
Chautauqua county, N. Y., should be mentioned Glenn
D. Clark, a member of one of the old families of the
neighborhood, and a son of Cary and Laura H. (Cole)
Clark, lifelong residents of the place. Cary Clark was
apprenticed to a local shoemaker to learn the trade
when but twelve years of age, and after five years of
training engaged in the same line of business on his
own account, following the same for many years.

Glenn D. Clark was born Feb. 7, 1881, at Jamestown,
and as a boy attended the public schools of the city.
For a number of years Mr. Clark has been engaged in
the plastering and brick laying business. He is well
and favorably known to his fellow-citizens and enjoys
an enviable reputation among them for his honesty and
for the accommodating spirit and skill with which he
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schools of Westfield and Peekskill Military Academy,
Peekskill, N. Y. Since leaving school, he has been in
the automobile business in Silver Creek, N. Y., as agent
for the Buick Motor Company., He is a member of
various clubs and fraternal orders. In politics he is a
Republican, and in religion a Presbyterian. He mar-
ried, in Buffalo, N. Y., June 29, 1915, Marguerite Eldora
Ne Moyer, daughter of Henry W. and Mary Jane Ne
Moyer,

William Bell Crandall was born in Westfield, Sept.
20, 1802, He attended as a lad the public and high
schools of Westfield. He then matriculated in the Val-
paraiso University in Indiana, and was graduated from
that institution, where he took a business course, in
1011. Upon completing his studies, Mr. Crandall pur-
chased the hardware business of H. W. Gibbs & Com-
pany and formed a partnership with C. D. Bell, with
whom he conducted this business very successfully for
about six years. When the United States entered the
great World War, Mr. Crandall at once gave up his
business to do his part in the effort of his country and
enlisted, May 6, 1018, in the United States Army, being
sent to Camp Wheeler, Georgia, to take part in convoy
work. He was connected with the 1o6ith, the supply
train of the 31st Division, and was sent with that body
to France, landing in Brest in September, 1018, From
there he went to Bordeaux, the supply base of the
United States Army, and became a member of the out-
fit attached to the Motor Transfer Corps which carried
supplies to the front. He was promoted to the rank of
corporal. On account of his father's death he was at-
tached to a casual company and reached the United
States two months earlier than his company, being hon-
orably discharged at Camp Mills, Long Island, May 12,
1019. Upon returning to Westfield, Mr. Crandall re-
sumed his father's undertaking business in partnership
with Mr. Guy Carpenter, which they conduct to the
present time. In politics, Mr. Crandall is a Republican,
and in religion a Presbyterian.

S. RAY FAIRBANKS—Among the attorneys of
Fredonia, N. Y., may be mentioned 5. Ray Fairbanks,
who occupies a prominent place in the community. Mr.
Fairbanks was born in Cherry Creek township, Chau-
tauqua county, N. Y., on his father's farm, Feb. 7, 1876,
and 1s a son of Monroe and Ellen F. ( James) Fairbanks.
The elder Mr. Fairbanks is a farmer and is still con-
ducting his own farm, despite his seventy odd years.
He is one of the sturdy old “gentlemen of the old
school,” and is well known in his vicinity.

While still a child, S. Ray Fairbanks accompanied
his parents to the village of Cherry Creek, and it was in
this place that he received a portion of his elementary
education. The family did not remain here very long,
however, but returned to the farm, and S. Ray attended
the district schools, later entering the Ellington High
School, where he was prepared for college, and gradu-
ated from this institution in 1895. He then taught in
the district school for a short period of time. In the
fall of 1806, he matriculated in Valparaiso University
in Valparaiso, Ind., taking a course in law, afterwards
attending the Chicago Law School, where he obtained
the degree of LL. B. in the spring of 1808. During the
Spanish-American War, he and four members of his
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class answered the first call of President McKinley for
volunteers, and enlisted in the First Illinois Cavalry, in
which regiment he remained during the period of the
war. He received his honorable discharge from the
army in October, 1808, Mr, Fairbanks then returned to
Cherry Creek, Chautauqua county, N. Y., and imme-
diately discovered that there was very little oppor-
tunity for a young lawyer to make any headway in this
town, so he therefore took the civil service examination
in January, 1809, and entered the government employ
in connection with the postoffice district in Fredonia.
After five years in this service, he began a clerkship in
the law office of Sterns & Thrasher, prominent attor-
neys of Fredonia, and in 1006 he was admitted to prac-
tice in the courts of the State of New York. For a
short time he was connected with the firm of Warner,
Farnham & Fairbanks, with offices in Dunkirk and Fre-
donia, which connection was severed in 1908, since which
time he has been practicing his profession independently.
Mr. Fairbanks is very prominent in the social and club
life of Fredonia, and is a member of the Dar Associa-
tion of Northern Chautauqua, the Independent Order
of Odd Fellows of Cherry Creek, the Sons of Veterans,
the United Spanish War Veterans, the Benevolent and
Protective Order of Elks, of Dunkirk, and the United
States Letter Carriers’ Association. In politics, Mr.
Fairbanks is a Republican, and has served eight years
as justice of the peace. For six vears Mr. Fairhaks was
a member of the Republican county committee of Chau-
tauqua county.

Mr. Fairbanks was united in marriage in Fredonia,
Sept. 1, 1000, with Sara E. Pringle, a daughter of
Charles and Alice Pringle, old and highly respected
residents of Fredonia. Two children have been born
of this union, Dorothy M. and Stuart.

CHARLES STILLMAN CLELAND, M. D.—
Among the eminent physicians of Chautauqua county,
Dr. Charles 8. Cleland, of Sinclairville, occupies a lead-
ing position. He descends from an early Chautauqua
family, John Cleland, Jr., coming in March, 1810, and
Nathan and Oliver Cleland in March, 1811, their brother
Samuel and father, John Cleland, Sr., and family com-
ing in the fall of the same year and finding a home in
the now town of Charlotte. The marriage of one of
the family, Moses Cleland, in the fall of 1811, to Sally
Anderson, by Rev. John Spencer, was the first marriage
ceremony performed in the town. Dr. Cleland descends
through Nathan, son of John and Thankful (Eaton)
Cleland, and grandson of James Cleland, the founder
of the family, a Scotchman. Dr. Cleland is the fifth
generation of his family in America, and of the fourth
in Chautanqua county. Since 1832 Dr. Cleland has been
engaged in medical practice, and since 1896 in Sinclair-
ville. He has won the true regard of his brethren of the
profession, and in the estimation of the public he is the
learned and skillful physician and esteemed citizen.

(1) James (2) Cleland, the founder of his family in
America, was the son of James (1) Cleland, a man of
wealth and education, who married Miss Bruce, and at
the time of the birth of his son, James (2), was living
in Edinburgh, Scotland. James (2) Cleland left his
native land in 1750 and came to New England, settling
in Boston, where he later married Thankful Wilder.
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They were the parents of seven children: Samuel,
Thomas, James, a soldier of the Revolution; John, of
further mention; Helen, Molly, and Hannah.

(IT) John Cleland, son of James (2) and Thankful
(Wilder) Cleland, was born in Eastern Massachusetts,
Feh. 16, 1758, and settled in the town of Plainfield, in
his native State. When a young man of twenty he en-
tered the Revolutionary struggle on the side of the
colonies, and from 1778 to 178 he was in the army,
serving in the company commanded by Captain Thomas,
and in the regiment led by Colonel Milk. Part of this
time he was General Putnam's personal orderly, and
always in active service. In 1807, with his wife and
eight children, he came to New York State, settling in
Otsego county, there remaining until the spring of 18171,
when two of the sons, attracted by the recent opening
up of Chautauqua county in Western New York, made
the journey and settled in Charlotte, then the town of
Gerry, Their reports being favorable, John Cleland,
with the remaining members of the family, made the
journey in the fall of 1811, John Cleland bought land
in township 4, range 11, in 1811, but the others settled
on lot 54, section 12, east of Charlotte Center, the tract
containing 330 acres, which was later largely hrought
under cultivation. John Cleland, the father, died at the
farm, Feh. 16, 1827, aged sixty-nine vears. His widow,
Thankful. survived him until July 19, 1841, when she
was laid by his side in Charlotte Center Cemetery, her
age at death, eighty-seven vears.

John Cleland married, in East Windsor, Conn,, April
27, 1780, Thankful Eaton, of an old Connecticut family,
born April 12, 1757, Descendants of John Eaton, who
came to New England in the ship “Elizabeth Ann”
April 27, 1635, seftled in Watertown, Mass., later in
Connecticut, and still later in New York State. Thank-
ful Eaton, it is helieved, was one of the thirteen chil-
dren of Nathaniel and Esther (Parry) Eaton, her father
a son of Thomas Eaton, son of John (2) Eaton, son
of John (1) Eaton, the founder. John and Thankful
(Eaton) Cleland were the parents of : Beriah, born
Nov. 15, 1781; Edna, born June 28, 1782; Samuel, born
Sept. 1, 1784, died in infancy; Samuel (2), born May
14, 1788; Thankiul, born April 22, 1790; John and
James (2) (twins), horn Feh, 10, 1702: Oliver, harn
Oct. 25, 1703; Nathan, born March s, 1795; Martin,
born April 10, 1707. The four Cleland hrothers, Samuel,
John, Oliver, and Nathan, hved to a great age, notwith-
standing their severe pioneer experiences, In  the
“Centennial History of Chautauqua County,” pulblished
in 1904, was a group engraving of the four brothers
showing them all as old men.

(IT1) Nathan Cleland, son of John and Thankful
(Eaton) Cleland. was born in Plainfield, Hampshire
county, Mass., Sept. 10, 1705, and died at his farm in
the town of Charlotte, Chautauqua county, N. Y., Sept.
10, 1887, having attained the great age of ninety-two
vears. He was twelve vears of age when taken by
his parents to New York State. When sixtecn years of
age, in the spring of 1811, he was sent with his hrother
Oliver to investigate Chautauqua lands and their report
being favorable, the entire family made the journey,
and a tract of 330 acres east of Charlotte Center be-
came the homestead farm. There Nathan and his
brothers and sisters grew to years of maturity, but each
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founded homes of their own, when taking a wife, Na-
than puru}wsing a farm in the town of Stockton, but
later moving again to the town of Charlotte, where his
long and useful life ended in 1887, He was a man of
great energy, strength and perseverance, a true tvpe of
the hardy pioneer who caused the forest to retreat hefore
the hchlss and the wild things of the forest to acknowl-
edga: their master and pass out of existence. Gleaming
rails carry the products of Chautaugua to distant mar-
kets, and the life of the descendants of the Clelands
find their lines cast in pleasant places, this due to the
old picneers, whose courage and self-sacrifice knew no
bounds.

Nathan Cleland married, Nov. 0, 1820, Electa Batchel-
dor, born April 12, 1707, died Aug, 6, 1860, dauehter of
Elijah and Rebecca (Dewitt) Batcheldor. Mr. and Mrs.
Cleland were the parents of eight children: Elvina 1.,
barn Sept. 7, 1821, married July 6, 1848, Mr, Gorman ;
Milo, born July 16, 1824, married, Nov, 10, 1871, Mar-
garet Thompson; Thankful, born March 8, 1820, mar-
ried, July 21, 1865, John Gorman; Electa R, horn June
2, 1831, married, Dec, 31, 1854, Samuel B. Irwin: Na-
than M., of further mention; Jane N, and John E.
(twins), born June 12, 18365 and Dolly Ann, born May
26, 1830, died young.

(IV}) Nathan M. Cleland, son of Nathan and Electa
( Batcheldor) Cleland, was horn at the home farm in
the town of Stocktom, Oct. 20, 1833, and died at his
home in the town of Charlotte, Dec. 10, 1013, He was
educated in the district school, and from vouth was a
farm worker. He was his father's able assistant in
farm management until his father’s passing in 1887,
then became managing owner, His farm was his home
and sole business interest from youth until old age, and
for twenty-six years he was its sole managing head,
although he had many years prior to the death of Na-
than Cleland borne the entire responsibility. After
coming into ownership he made many improvements
and erected the present modern farm residence. The
farm of 208 acres js well improved and a most desirable
property. In politics Mr. Cleland was a Republican and
active in town affairs, serving as justice of the peace,
road commissiorer and coroner. In relicions faith he
was a Daptist.

Nathan M. Cleland married, in the town of Gerry,
May 16, 1861, Catherine M. Hooper, daughter of Eze-
kiel and Betsey (Tompkins) Hooper, and a grandniece
of Governor Tompkins of New York, Mr. and Mrs,
Cleland were the parents of three children: Charles
Stillman, of further mention: Owen M., whose sketch
follows: Grace, wife of Charles Scars, and a rtesident
of Sinclairville, Chautauqua county.

(V) Charles Stillman Cleland, eldest son of Nathan
M. and Catherine M. (Hoaper) Cleland, was born at
the home farm in the town of Charlotte, Chantangqua
county, New York, July 3, 1862. After completing pub-
lic school courses of study, finishing in the Sin-
clairville High School, he taught schaol for four vears
in Charlotte public schools and for a time in Tidioute,
Warren county, Pa., During those years he resided at
the home farm and read medicine with Dr. A, A, Ste-
vens. He next entered the College of Physicians and
Surgeons at Baltimore, hut a year later he withdrew and
finished his medical study at the medical department of
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the University of Baltimore, whence he was graduated
M. D., class of 1887,

‘With his newly acquired honors, Dr. Cleland began
practice in South Dayton, Cattaraugus county, N. Y.,
and there remained two years, gaining needed experi-
ence and confidence. From South Dayton he moved
in 1880 to Collins, Erie county, N. Y. and there he
continued in successful practice for seven years, He
closed out his practice in Collins in 1896, and located in
Sinclairville, his old home district, succeeding Dr.
Frank A. Stevens. For nearly a quarter of a century
Dr. Cleland has practiced medicine in Sinclairville, his
standing as a careful diagnostician and skilliul physi-
cian being very high. During this entire period, 1806-
1020, he has been health officer of the village and has
as scrupulously observed his public duties as his private
practicee. He is a member of the Chautauqua County
Medical Society, New York State Medical Society, and
American Medical Association, keeping in close touch
with all advance in medical science through these so-
cieties, their meetings and their literature. He has
practiced his healing art over the district his forefathers
helped to subdue a century ago, and has builded a name
and fame as enduring as theirs. Dr. Cleland is a mem-
her of Sinclairville Lodge, Free and Accepted Masons;
president of Sinclairville Free Public Library; and in
politics, a Democrat of the Cleveland-Wilson type.

Dr. Cleland married in Tidioute, Warren county, Pa,,
Ida L. Irvin, born in Tidioute, daughter of William and
Charity (McGrath) Irvin. Dr. and Mrs. Cleland are the
parents of a son, Elmer Owen, of further mention.

(VI) Dr, Elmer Owen Cleland, only child of Dr.
Charles S. and Ida L. (Irvin) Cleland, was born in
South Dayton, Cattaraugus county, N. Y., June 20, 1888,
and died at the home of his parents in Sinclairville,
Oct. 19, 010. He was eight vears of age when his
parents made Sinclairville their permanent home, and
there he completed public school study with graduation
from high school, class of 1000. Choosing the profes-
sion of dentistry, he entered the dental department of
Baltimore Medical College, whence he was graduated
D. D. S, class of 1912. After receiving his degree he
located in Greenville, Mercer county, Pa., continuing in
practice there until his death. During the period of war
between the United States and Germany, 1017-1018, Dr.
Cleland was enrolled in the Medical Reserve force and
was assigned to Base Hospital No. 42, at Pittshurgh,
Pa., and ordered to report for duty, Oct. 17, 1018. On
that date he was suffering from an attack of influenza,
from which he never recovered, the immediate cause
of his death a year later being attributed to bronchial
pneumonia. He was very successful in his profession,
and socially very popular. He was a member of Sin-
clairville Lodge, Free and Accepted Masons, Greenville
Lodge, No. 140, Benevolent and Protective Order of
Elks, and of the Bessemer Club. He was stricken just
on life’s threshold and with every promise of a brilliant
professional career before him. He was buried with
many others of his family in the cemetery at Sinclair-
ville.

Dr. Charles S, Cleland, now in the full prime of his
physical powers, with mind enriched with the years of
constant practice and study, and with the calm and
sober judgment which the vears alone can give, occu-
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pies an enviable position in his community. He is the
loved confidant and trusted adviser of young and old,
and is no less highly valued as friend and neighbor than
as a physician. His is a genial, social, friendly nature,
and as his personality attracts, so his sterling quality re-
tains the friendship of all who come within the wide
circle of his influence.

OWEN M. CLELAND was born at the home farm
in Charlotte, Chautauqua county, N. Y., May 9, 1864,
son of Nathan M. and Catherine M. (Hooper) Cleland
(q. v.). He received his early education in the district
schools, and later attended high school at Ellington,
N. Y. After laying aside his text books, Mr. Cleland
assisted his father in his stock and dairy farming until
the latter’s retirement from active business, when Owen
M. assumed the entire management of the farm and
continued extensive dairy farming and stock raising.
The pride of the farm is its fine herd of principally
Holstein cattle, and its dairy is one of the best equipped
in the town. Mr. Cleland also conducts general farming
operations, and is the largest grower of cabbage in the
county. He is a charter member and past master of
Charlotte Grange, No. 660, Patrons of Husbandry, and
takes a deep interest in its business and social affairs.
He is also a member of Sylvan Lodge, No. 303, Free
and Accepted Masons, of Sinclairville, and of the Order
of the Eastern Star. In politics, Mr. Cleland is a Re-
publican, but in local affairs supports the men and
measures that he thinks are for the best interests of all
the people. He has served Charlotte as justice of the
peace, and is one of the substantial, progressive men of
his town. In religious affiliation, Mr. Cleland and his
family are members of the Methodist Episcopal church
of Charlotte Center.

Mr. Cleland married, Nov. 11, 1800, Ethlyn Hollen-
beck, born in Gerry township. Mrs. Cleland is a popular
member of the Eastern Star and Grange, and is active
in their social activities. Mr. and Mrs. Cleland are the
parents of three sons: 1. J. Clayton, born Aug. 26,
1804 ; educated in grammar and high school and Cor-
nell University—agricultural course—now his father’s
farm assistant; he is a member of the Patrons of Hus-
bandry ; Sylvan Lodge, Free and Accepted Masons; In-
dependent Order of Odd Fellows; New York State
Young Men's Christian Association; and politically, a
Republican. 2. Charles M., born Sept. 26, 1000, was
educated in the same schools as his brother, and is an
assistant in the management of the home farm; he is a
member of the Patrons of Husbandry. 3. Stillman, born
Sept. 12, 1005, now attending school.

Thoroughly devoted to his business, Mr. Cleland
worthily represents a class of men who cannot but be
regarded as the bulwark of our nation, and a sure de-
fense when the misrule of city and commonwealth
hrings confusion and unrest. The agriculturist who is
a landowner has too much at stake to make experiments
in political economy, and is the rock upon which our
national prosperity—nay our national life, rests. The
reputation of a century of Clelands in the town of Char-
Iotte rests safely in his keeping, and he has given to the
town a fourth generation of sons, who are agriculturists,
trained in college for scientific farming.
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lenova, Chautauqua county, N, Y., April 12, 1851, He
was young when the family moved to Hanover, and
there was educated in the public schools. He remained
at home, his father’s assistant, until the death of the
latter, when Joshua E. succeeded to the management
of the homestead, operating its acres and large vine-
vards with profit and success, his farm and vineyards
yielding abundantly. In r1gos, he removed from the
homestead to the village of Silver Creek, but retained
his interest in the farm. He entered the employ of the
then postmaster of Silver Creek as assistant, and from
that year until his death in Silver Creek in August,
1016, he held that pesition. He is buried in the ceme-
tery at Hanover Center, Chautauqua county. Mr.
Cushman was a Republican in politics and for many
years was a member of the county committee. He was
a member of the Methodist Episcopal church.

Mr. Cushman married, in Hanover, Millie E. Young,
born in Dayton, Cattaraugus county, N. Y., daughter
of George and Emily (Sherman) Young, her mother
a descendant of one of the important early families of
Rhode Island. Miss Young was educated in the public
schools, Westfield Academy, and Fredonia State Nor-
mal, teaching in Chautaugua and Cattaraugus county
schools until her marriage, also serving as prinecipal.
Since becoming a widow, she has sold the Cushman
homestead in Hanover, and continues her residence at
Silver Creek, where she is a member of the Methodist
Episcopal church, president of the Foreign Missionary
Society, an active member of the Ladies’ Aid Society,
the Women’s Christian Temperance Union, and yet
retains membership in the Farmers' Club of Hanover,
of which her husband was a one-time president. Mr.
and Mrs. Cushman were the parents of two children:
. Vera C,, educated in the public schools, Bryant &
Stratton’s Business College, Buffalo, Fredonia State
Normal School, and Syracuse University, receiving the
degree of Ph. D. from the last-named institution; she
adopted teaching as her profession, and after serving
as an imstructor in the commercial department of
Youngstown, Ohio, High School, became principal of
the commercial department of the East Technical High
School, Cleveland, Ohio. 2. Livia E., who after high
school graduation, entered Syracuse University, whence
she was graduated; she married Dr. R. S. Moore, a
medical specialist in the Syracuse University Hospital;
Mrs. Moore died in October, 1018, leaving a daughter,
Rachel Cushman Moore; she was an active Young
Women's Christian Association worker and a member
of the Methodist Episcopal church.

Mr. Cushman was devoted to his family. He was a
man of strong character, honorable and upright in all
his dealings, and of sterling principles. Mrs Cushman
resides on Christy street, Silver Creek, N, Y.

GLEN W. CLELAND—Despite the fact that this is
the name of a man, the span of whose life embraced a
period of only thirty years, there are few citizens of
Chautauqua county who will not greet its appearance
with a heart-throb of recognition. Mr. Cleland, who
always remained a resident of his native township of
Charlotte, was one of those youthful patriots, who in
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the recent World War laid down their lives for their-:%-
country and for humanity.

Samuel Cleland, great-grandiather of Glen W. Cle- |
land, was one of the pioneer settlers of Charlotte town-
ship. He was a soldier in the War of 1812, serving at
Fort Erie. He married Elizabeth Holdridge. )

Orrin Cleland, son of Samuel and Elizabeth (Hold-
ridge) Cleland, married Drucilla Rhynder, Like his
father, he was a resident of Charlotte township,

Orrin William Cleland, son of Orrin and Drucilla
(Rhynder) Cleland, was born in 1858, in Charlotte
township, and received his education in local schools..
He became a farmer in the neighborhood of Charlotte
Center. He married Emma, daughter of William and
Margaret (McClaran) Shannon, both of whom are now.
deceased. Mr. Cleland died Jan. 24, 1888, leaving his
young widow to rear the son to whom she was devoted
and whom relentless war has taken from her, Mrs.
Cleland, who has always lived in Charlotte Center, now
resides in Cassadaga. !

Glen W. Cleland, son of Orrin William and Emma
(Shannon) Cleland, was born April 24, 1888, in Char-
lotte township, He attended the public schools of his
native place, alterward studying at the Sinclairville
High School. Having a mechanical turn of mind he
preferred machinery to farming, and found employment;.
in automobile repair shops in Jamestown, Cassadaga
and Sinclairville, At the time of the outbreak of the
war, Mr. Cleland was thus employed, and when the
United States became a participant in the great con-
flict, obeying the impulse of patriotism, he responded to 1
the call to arms, enlisting in Company F, 3gth Battalion, %
and was ordered to the camp at Syracuse, N. Y. While
training in camp for overseas duty, Mr. Cleland fell il
with influenza, which in a few days turned to pneu-
monia, and on Sept. 28 1918, he passed away at the
training camp. He was buried with military honors
at Sinclairville, in his native county. He had been a
good soldier, ever faithful to duty and well liked by his
comrades. |

The life of Glen W. Cleland was a valuable life, for
he was a useful citizen and wholeheartedly devoted
to his widowed mother, but he hesitated not to offer
himseli on the altar of patriotism, being in this, as in
all other respects, a typical representative of American
manhood.

i T s e

FRED A. NELSON, who for many years had been
responsibly connected, in executive capacity, with the
furniture industry in the city of Jamestown, N. Y., was
one of the organizers of the Jamestown Upholstery
Company, manufacturers of high grade upholstered fur-
niture in leather and fabric, and of later years has been
its president. He is a native of Jamestown, born Sept.
21, 1874, the son of Victor Fred and Caroline Nelson,
the former for many years connected with the police
department of Jamestown, but now in business with his
son, in the Jamestown Upholstery Company.

Fred A. Nelson received his education in local
schools, taking the primary grades in the grammar
school and then becoming a student in the high school.
He was an industrious boy, and for some years while



